
Question # RFP Reference QUESTION ANSWER
Gen-1 Secton A, Page 2, Paragraph d) The Period of performance is cumulative by the number of Days After Award (DAA).  

If calculating this over the Base Year and 4 Option Years, none of the Contract Years 
start and end consistently(i.e., Option Year 3 begins 4 May 2016, ending 4 May 2017, 
and Option Year 4 begins 5 May 2017, ending 5 May 2018).  (1) Is it the Government's 
intention to have inconsistent beginning and ending contract year dates?  (2) Will the 
Government please clarify the period of performance for proposal purposes?

Each Contract Year will have consistent beginning and ending dates.  For example, 
if Option Year 3 were to begin 4 May 2016, it would end 3 May 2017.  Option 
Year 4 would begin 4 May 2017 and end 3 May 2018.   

Gen-2 Solicitation #                       
W52P1J-12-R-0129

Can only offerors with the Eagle contract vehicle bid on this TO, or is this open to all 
certified 8(a) companies?

Please refer to Section A of the Solicitation.  Only EAGLE BOA holders (who can 
certify participation in the SBA's 8(a) program) as of the issuance date of this 
solicitation are elegible to submit proposals against this RFP.  

Gen-3 Solicitation #                       
W52P1J-12-R-0129

Is the incumbent elgible to re-bid? Please refer to Section A of the Solicitation.  EAGLE BOA holders (who can 
certify participation in the SBA's 8(a) program) as of the issuance date of this 
solicitation are elegible to submit proposals against this RFP.  

Gen-4 Solicitation #                       
W52P1J-12-R-0129

In your estimation, how many FTE's are expected to adequately address the needs of the 
agency as outlined in the PWS?

Potential Offerors shall use the workload data found in the Technical Exhibits in 
order to formulate their approach for meeting PWS requirements.  

Gen-5 Section A, Page 2 of 58 of the 
RFP

RFP lists a Base plus 4 Option Periods, however, Attachment 5 only provides data input 
lines for only the Base plus 2 Option Periods... please clarify which is the correct period 
of performance

The Period of Performance includes a Base Year plus four (4) one year evaluated 
option periods.  Offerors shall complete the Cost/Price Matrix (Attachment 0005) 
for the base year and option years by populating the highlighted blue cells.  All un-
highlighted cells are formula driven.  

Gen-6 Solicitation Section A - 
General Information, Page 2, 
Paragraph (d) 

The Task Order RFP does not identify an estimated contract award date nor a potential 
transition start date. This information is required to accurately forecast rates. Can the 
government provide the anticipated Award date for use as an estimated period of 
performance start date?

It is anticipated that the task order will be awarded in July 2013, however this date 
is subject to change.  

Gen-7 Site Visit 16Jan13 In building 14608 we observed maintenance areas with signs that read “Alarm Repair” 
and  “Buffer Repair”. Please clarify the PWS requirements for both Alarm Repair and 
Buffer Repair.

Alarm Repair and Buffer Repair is part of Base Operation Support provided by 
Material Maintnenance.  Both types of equipment are indentified in the Equipment 
Density Listing of TE-5001.

Gen-8 Site Visit Breifing DOL Slides Chart 9, Organization.  In the Supply and Services column it has Laundry & Dry 
Cleaning and Oversee DLA Dispositon, Self Service Supply and DFAC 
Mananngement.  None of these were addressed on the site visit or in the PWS.  Please 
clarify.

Slide 2 of the Briefing contains a disclaimer regarding information provided on the 
slides.  This disclaimer was also read aloud during the briefing and states "Slides 
presented in this briefing are for informational purposes only.  Offerors should only 
propose requirements as specified in the Performance Work Statement (PWS)". 

Gen-9 Site Visit Breifing 1st set of 
slides, #9

The DOL briefing slides (9-12), list significantly more functions than are included in 
the PWS and workload data - which adds to the confusion.  Would it be possible to get 
a set of slides, workload data and a PWS that all accurately coincide?

Slide 2 of the Briefing contains a disclaimer regarding information provided on the 
slides.  This disclaimer was also read aloud during the briefing and states "Slides 
presented in this briefing are for informational purposes only.  Offerors should only 
propose requirements as specified in the Performance Work Statement (PWS)". 

Gen-10 No Specific Reference Has the incumbent contractor submitted a Transition-Out Plan? If no, will they be 
required to do so 180 days prior to the end contract?

The current contract does have a requirement for a Transition-Out Plan.  

General Questions



Gen-11 Site Visit During the site visit, DOL personnel said that the Laundry was not a part of the PWS, 
yet Slide 9 oif their briefing has it listed. Can the Government clarify if it is a part of the 
contract?

Slide 2 of the Briefing contains a disclaimer regarding information provided on the 
slides.  This disclaimer was also read aloud during the briefing and states "Slides 
presented in this briefing are for informational purposes only.  Offerors should only 
propose requirements as specified in the Performance Work Statement (PWS)". 

Question # RFP Reference QUESTION ANSWER
LM-1 EAGLE Fort Gordon 

solicitation page 47 of 58 
paragraph L.5.3.1.1 

Must a prime have self-qualified in a functional area to use a non-BOA qualified sub as 
a major subcontractor to perform in excess of 20% share of the work?

If a BOA holder did not self-qualify in a particular functional area, they must either 
self-perform that effort or use a Teammate approved under their BOA Attachment 
0002.

LM-2 EAGLE Fort Gordon 
solicitation page 47 of 58 
paragraph L.5.3.1.1 

What is the criteria to bring on a major sub-contractor ( i.e., non approved BOA 
teammate) to team with a small business prime BOA holder on an EAGLE Proposal?

If an Offeror wishes to amend their BOA Attachment 0002 approved Teammates, 
they must submit a revised proposal when a new BOA RFP is issued.

LM-3 RFP Section L, para L.5.4.3.7 Is it the government's intent that Attachment 0002 to the RFP, Staffing Labor Mix, 
when filled out, will satisfy the requirements of RFP, para L.5.4.3.7, which states that 
"Offorers will provide a side by side comparison detailing all proposed labor 
categories?"

No, in accordance with L.5.4.3.7, the Offerors shall provide a side by side 
comparison detailing all proposed labor categories that are applicable to the
Service Contract Act and either the Section J Attachment 0010, Department of 
Labor Wage Determination (13 June 2012) or Attachment 0007,
Ft. Gordon DOL Collective Bargaining Agreement labor categories/occupation 
code.

LM-4 Sol. Section L.5.4.3.4, p. 49 The CLINs for Other Direct Costs (ODCs) are Government provided surrogate 
numbers, which are inclusive for any Offerors applicable indirect rate adders. ODCs are 
defined as: consumables (normal office supplies, typical cleaning supplies), travel 
expenses (per JFTR), individual protective equipment“ and Att. 7 – CBA Article XX, 
Section 6 – PPE Allowance. Is Section 6 considered an allowable/reimbursable ODC 
covered under the referenced Sol. Section?

Yes. 

LM-5 Section L.5.4.2.6 (L-13) Subcontractor Cost Price sealed bid deliver only reference Hand Delivery to Rock 
Island. Is there a  mailing option for subcontracting pricing delivery? If so, what is the 
address?

Please see Amendment 0002 to the solicitation.    

LM-6 RFP, page 47 of 58, 
L.5.2.1.3.2 Basis of Estimate

If a subcontractor is providing a closed pricing submission, are they required to also 
submit their own 3-page Basis of Estimate or will the team Basis of Estimate, provided 
as part of the Technical Factor, suffice?

Subcontractors should not submit a separate Basis of Estimate for L.5.2.1.3.2.

LM-7 Page 55 of 58, M.4.1.1.ii The RFP says: "Present a successful example . . .." For this narrative, may offerors cite 
examples from other contracts that were not included in Step 2 submittals?

Yes. 

LM-8 Sol. Sect. M, e.g., Cost 
Realism & “probable cost of 
performance” (various refs.)

Please clarify whether offerors are required to account for any prospective CBA wage 
increases in their pricing of the Out/Option Years or will this be done as part of the 
Govt.’s Cost Realism analysis? 

Offerors shall use the CBA rates and Wage Determinations included in the RFP 
when preparing their proposal.

L&M Questions



LM-9 L.2.7; L.4.2.1 Volume 1- 
General Documents; L.5.1.5

L.4.2.1 and L.5.1.5 require that the Offeror provide the Small Business Administration 
8(a) certification Letter.  However, L.2.7 does not list the 8(a) Certification Letter 
amongst the documents that are allowed to be submitted in Adobe pdf format.    May 
we submit the 8(a) Certification Letter in Adobe pdf format?

Yes, this will be corrected in an upcoming Amendment to the solicitation.  

LM-10 L.5.4.2.6, page 49 of 58 This paragraph states:  If the proposed teammate(s)/subcontractor(s) wish to provide its 
cost information independently to the Government, it shall submit its information on a 
CD-ROM to the address outlined in ACC-RI Local Clause 52.214-4584.  This clause 
does not provide the address for sending (mail, FedEx, etc...) the teammates CD.  
Please provide the send to address. 

Please see Amendment 0002 to the solicitation.    

LM-11 RFP Section L, Page 44, 
Paragraph 2.2

Section L.2.2 states no Cost/Price information will be presented except in the 
Cost/Price Proposal file, however Amendment 2 added the Teaming Matrix (Att. 14) 
which includes estimated contract value of each team member and is to be provided in 
Volume I - General Documents.  Please confirm this pricing information will be 
included in Volume I.

The Teaming Matrix shall be included in Volume I - General Documents. 

LM-12 RFP, page 57 of 58, Paragraph 
M.4.2.7, Recency

For the purpose of this requirement, recency is any contract under which any 
performance, delivery, or corrective action has occurred within the following time 
standards: five (5) years prior to the solicitation closing date, or awarded more than five 
(5) years prior to closing date, but for which services were performed approximately 
within the 5-year period prior to the closing date of this solicitation.

Question: Due to the recent changes in submission date, would the government 
consider changing the verbiage to read “Awarded more than five (5) years prior to the 
original closing date”?

No. 

LM-13 Q&A att-16, and L.5.4.3.3 Q&A Att-16 stats that FTEs in attachment 0002 must be in whole numbers. RFP section 
L.5.4.3.3 states that the staffing matrix within the Cost Volume should mirror 
Attachment 0002.  Since the staffing matrix supports the pricing of the direct labor, are 
bidders required to do their pricing using only whole FTEs? If so, are whole FTEs only 
required for the Base Year pricing to match Attachment 0002, or on out years as well?

Offerors are not required to submit their cost/ pricing proposal using only whole 
FTEs. 

Question # RFP Reference QUESTION ANSWER
PWS-1 Attachment_0001_-

_Performance_Work_Statemen
t_(PWS)

The published PWS (file Attachment_0001_-
_Performance_Work_Statement_(PWS).pdf, dated 12 Dec 12 and 182 pgs) has a 
"DRAFT" annotation and the date "December 2012" on it.  Request the Government 
clarify if this file is in fact the final version of the Performance Work Statement and its 
date.

This is the correct version of the PWS.  Please continue to monitor any amendments 
for possible revisions to the PWS.  

PWS-2 0001 PWS/ Page #/ Paragraph 
1.11.10

The order of paragraphs is as follows: 1.10.9.1, 1.11.10, 1.10.11.  
Question: Should "1.11.10" be removed or relabeled "1.10.10"?

This paragraph should be relabeled "1.10.10."

PWS SECTION 1-4 QUESTIONS



PWS-3 PWS, Section C-1, Paragraph 
1.7, Environmental 
Requirements

Please confirm that the Contractor will be entitled to perform an Environmental 
Baseline Review during the transition‐in period and any issues or correction will be 
addressed and corrected by the
COR/CO prior to the start of the base period.

This is correct.  

PWS-4 PWS Section C-1, Page 8, 
Paragraph 1.4.1.2

On average, how many days per year does the Garrison Commander declare the 
installation "closed" or road condition "red" or "black"?

On average, two times per year. 

PWS-5 PWS Section C-1, Page 12, 
Paragraph 1.5.3.5 
& PWS Section C-1, Page 22, 
Paragraphs 1.10.9.1 & 1.11.10

Will the Government permit contractor to connect contractor-owned computers to the 
government-owned network for web-based timekeeping systems?

Yes.

PWS-6 PWS Section C-1, Page 16, 
Paragraph 1.6.2 

Will the Government provide current internal SOPs for each of these functional areas or 
will the contractor be required to develop SOPs?

The Government will provided Internal SOP for Sustainment and Field level 
maintenance standards only.  This is to distinguish between the two levels of 
maintenance and the fact that FMX will provide separate CORs to oversee field 
level maintenance for TRADOC.  No additional internal SOPs are forthcoming 
from the Government.  

PWS-7 PWS Section C-1, Page 16, 
Paragraph 1.7

To what extent is the Contractor responsible for dispositioning hazardous material? Is 
there a on site central collection point that the Contractor will take the hazardous 
material/waste to for Government disposition? Will the Government be transporting 
hazardous material/waste off base for disposal?

The Contractor is responsible for collecting hazardous material/waste and 
transporting to a collection site located on post. 

PWS-8 PWS, Section C-5 and Exhibit 
E, TE 5-002, paragraph 1.4.1, 
page 10

Exhibit E states contractor shall establish and maintain a SASMO helpdesk.  The PWS 
is silent on this requirement.  Please confirm that the contractor is not responsible for 
operating a SASMO helpdesk.

SASMO support is no longer a requirement for this contract/PWS.

PWS-9 PWS 1.4.4 and 1.4.4.1, p. 16; 
Attachment 0005

PWS 1.4.4 and 1.4.4.1 contain references to a Surge CLIN, yet there is no Surge CLIN 
listed in the Attachment 0005.  Is this an oversight?  Will Attachment 0005 be revised?

The Government does not intend to use a Surge CLIN.  The CLIN structure is 
outlined in Attachment 0005. 

Question # RFP Reference QUESTION ANSWER
PWS5-1 PWS, Section C-5 page 2, Para 

5.11.1
Para 5.11.1 Installation Supply and Services division makes reference to TE 5-013; will 
the government make this TE available?

The reference to TE 5-013 under paragraph 5.11.1 will be deleted.

PWS5-2 PWS, Section C-5 page 1, Para 
5.1.1

In PWS paragraph 5.1.1 the Government makes reference to TE 5-002 “Fleet 
management Expansion (FMX)”; since there is no specific workload provided for the 
FMX maintenance program is the contractor to assume workload provide in Exhibit TE 
5-001 is inclusive of all maintenance efforts needed to support the FMX maintenance? 
If workload for FMX is not inclusive will the government consider providing the 
location and workload specific to the FMX maintenance described in Exhibit F? 

FMX has not been fully implemented at Fort Gordon and therefore has not been 
tracked separately from other work.  FMX will be implemented fully when the new 
contract is awarded.  FMX workload data is inclusive with the data provided in TE 
5-001

PWS SECTION 5 QUESTIONS



PWS5-3 PWS, Section C-5, page 5, 
Para 5.4.3.3

PWS Paragraph 5.4.3.3 States; the contractor shall establish and operate a separate 
facility capable of performing fuel and water drum maintenance; will the government 
provided workload for this activity?

Workload data is inclusive with the data provided in TE 5-001.  The workload data 
will not be broken down by shops and/or type of work being performed.

PWS5-4 PWS, Page 49, Para 5.25 Within provided PWS attachment 0001; 5.25 Passenger Movements requirements are 
stated in two Paragraphs. Section c page 49 contains Passenger Movements with 
contractor requirements listed in 5.25.1-5.25.7. Following the initial 5.25 paragraph you 
provided an additional 5.25 paragraph (Passenger movements- Reserved); Question; 
Are there passenger movements to be provided by the contractor for the FGGA Task 
Order? 

The second paragraph labeled 5.25 is a duplicate and will be removed from the 
PWS.  

PWS5-5 0001 PWS- Para 5.8.1.1 - 
Section C-5 page 9

In PWS Paragraph 5.8.1.1 it states "The contractor shall operate the customer service 
centers during the hours of 0730 through 1130 and 1200 through 1530 on all regularly 
scheduled workdays. COMSEC and weapons hours of operation end at 1500."  This 
appears to imply that the contractor is to operate multiple customer service centers but 
does not give the locations. In exhibit 5-004 the government provides locations where 
maintenance teams are to support but does not indicate that full time personnel are 
required at those locations. 
Question:  Would the government please clarify how many and the location for the 
customer service centers in support of the  Production Control function?  Is there a 
customer service center in each maintenance location/shop?

Customers service centers are only located at the main shops (4 each), and remote 
motor pool locations (2 each).  

PWS5-6 0001 PWS- Para 5.13- PWS paragraph 5.13 states that it is the Consolidated property book office but there is 
no taskings under it. Then paragraph c.5.15 also has the title consolidate property book 
office with taskings.
Question:  What is paragraph 5.13 actually suppose to be?

Paragraph 5.13 will be marked as RESERVED. 

PWS5-7 PWS C-5 Page 46, Para 5.21.1 Since there is a CDRL for Monthly  Workload for A/DACG, will the Government 
provide the workload date for the past year or provide a monthly projection so we can 
estimate staffing and provide a reasonable price?

This information is contained in Exhibit J - TE 5-006. 

PWS5-8 PWS C-5 Page 49, Para 5.24.6 Since there is a CDRL for Monthly  Workload for Container Yard, will the Government 
provide the workload date for the past year or provide a monthly projection so we can 
estimate staffing and provide a reasonable price?

Paragraphs 5.24.2 and 5.24.3 on page 49 under Container Yard Operations will be 
deleted. Fort Gordon does not perform this service for ISO containers. Paragraph 
5.24.4, 5.24.5 and 5.24.6 are current requirements of the UMC/Freight Section and 
will remain in the PWS. Paragraph numbers will be adjusted accordingly.  The 
referrence to a Container yard refers to the outbound shipment storage yard. Rolling 
stock are placed in the yard awaiting commercial carrier pickup. Additional 
workload data not required. Workload data included in Transportation exhibit J.

PWS5-9 PWS C-5 Page 51, Para 5.29.1 Since there are reports and statistical data, will the Government provide the workload 
date for the past year or provide a monthly projection so we can estimate staffing and 
provide a reasonable price?

Workload data for UMC is contained in Transportation Exhibit J. All workload was 
included in the number of outbound cargo movements.



PWS5-10 PWS A/DACG PRS Pages C-5 
Page 55 to 58

Will the Government provide workload date for each PRS requirement so the 
contractor will be able to meet the AQL with the sufficient staffing and appropriate 
price?

Sufficient workload data was provided. Workload data for unit movements is 
contained in Transportation exhibit J.

PWS5-11 PWS PPO PRS Page C-5 Page 
59, 5.22.1

What is the monthly average number of incentive payments and reimbursement 
processed?   It was not included in Exhibit J

Five (5) per month.

PWS5-12 PWS Freight PRS Page C-5 
Page 69, 5.27.1

What is the monthly average number of air / water clearances obtained?   It was not 
included in Exhibit J

TCMDs (Transportaiton Control Movement Document) is required on OCONUS 
shipmnets with the total monthly TCMDs anotated in Exhibit J workload data.

PWS5-13 PWS Freight PRS Page C-5 
Page 70, 5.27.3.3

What is the monthly average number of RESHIP Processed?   It was not included in 
Exhibit J

The correct term is REPSHIP (Report of Shipment) which is part of the outbound 
shipment procedures. This would be a part of the outbound documentation and the 
number of outbound shipments are contained in Transportation Exhibit J. All 
workload was included in the number of outbound cargo movements in Exhibit J.

PWS5-14 PWS PM PRS Page C-5 Page 
73, 5.25.1

What is the monthly average number of Port Calls Processed?   It was not included in 
Exhibit J

There were 9,717 travel request for port calls processed for FY12.  Port Calls are 
not actually processed under this requirement.  However, in transportation exhibit J 
number 2 under Passenger is "PCS TRAVELERS (PORT CALL)(EACH)" which 
gives the monthly workload data for this question. 

PWS5-15 PWS MCT PRS Pages C-5 
Page 76 and 77

Will the Government provide workload date for each PRS requirement so the 
contractor will be able to meet the AQL with the sufficient staffing and appropriate 
price?

Sufficient workload data was provided Exhibit J.

PWS5-16 Attachment 001 PWS, C-5 
Page 3, Para 5.14.1

Are the support hours of operations include Saturday and Sundays or not?  Please 
clarify.

SSMO operations normally close on weekends and federal holidays.

PWS5-17 Attachment 001 PWS, C-5 
Page 3, Para 5.14.2

What are the current number of MRE's, URG, UHT etc that are on hand as they are not 
called out in the Workload in Exhibit H TE 5-005

MREs on had fluctuate based on the demands of the units, average 960 cases.  

PWS5-18 Attachment 001 PWS, C-5 
Page 2, Para 5.12.2

States in part " provide new OCIE Fields Support Services"  What does the word NEW 
mean?  Is this new work all together?  New building to be provided?  Please expand.  If 
new work will projected workload be provided as there is none in Exhibit H, TE 5-005?

The word "new" will be removed.  No new work or building is or projected to be 
provided at this time.

PWS5-19 Attachment 001 PWS, C-5 
Page 3, Para 5.12.3

How many locations are currently in the CIF? Not provided in the Exhibit H There are 50 locations.  The number of locations as well as the number of OCIE in 
each location fluctuates. 

PWS5-20 Attachment 001 PWS, C-5 
Page 3, Para 5.12.4

How many line item and units are currently in the CIF? Not provided in the Exhibit H Over 1200 line items and we service 35 units.  Line items fluctuates monthly.

PWS5-21 Attachment 001 PWS, C-5 
Page 3, Para 5.12.6

How many departing personnel are processed monthly in the CIF? Not provided in the 
Exhibit H

The CIF processes an average of 700 AIT Soldiers and 200 permanent party 
Soldiers a week.  There is no requirement to track departing personnel.  Refer to 
Exhibit H for workload performed.  

PWS5-22 Attachment 001 PWS, C-5 
Page 6, Para 5.15.5

How many items are stored in ICEMP Warehouse?  How many are issued monthly?  
Shipped Monthly?  Not provided in the Exhibit H

Currently there is none. Support Requirement could occur as requirements change 
for current and future organizations.

PWS5-23 Attachment 001 PWS, C-5 
Page 7, Para 5.15.6

How often are TFP relocated or repositioned monthly?  Not provided in the Exhibit H Average of two a month are relocated.

PWS5-24 Attachment 001 PWS, C-5 
Page 7, Para 5.16.4

How many sensitive items are received, stored or issued  monthly?  Not provided in the 
Exhibit H

Sensitive items are not individual tracked but are issued immediately upon receipt.  
This is inclusive in the workload data in receipt/issue in Exhibit H. 



PWS5-25 Attachment 001 PWS, C-5 
Page 9, Para 5.16.7

How many COMSEC are received, stored or issued  monthly?  Not provided in the 
Exhibit H

COMSEC items are not individual tracked but are issued immediately upon receipt.  
This is inclusive in the workload data in receipt/issue in Exhibit H. 

PWS5-26 Attachment 001 PWS, C-5 
Page 9, Para 5.16.9.2

How many packing and crating actions are accomplished  monthly?  Not provided in 
the Exhibit H

Average one action annually.  SRP actions average 180 annually.

PWS5-27 Attachment 001 PWS, C-5 
Page 9, Para 5.16.9.3

How many repairable items are received, issued or shipped  monthly?  Not provided in 
the Exhibit H

Repairable items (Exchange Pricing) are not individually tracked in the SSA.  
Receipt and issue transactions are in Exhibit H.

PWS5-28 Attachment 001 PWS, C-5 
Page 9, Para 5.16.9.4

How many CLASS VII items are received, issued and stored  monthly? How many 
items are scheduled for PMs?  Not provided in the Exhibit H

Class VII items are not tracked individually.  Majority of the ASL is categorized as 
Class IX, III.

PWS5-29 Attachment 001 PWS, C-5 
Page 10, Para 5.17.2

How many HAZMAT items are received, issued, turn-in and stored  monthly?   Not 
provided in the Exhibit H

We average 700 transactions a quarter.  We have 42 ASL items with 73 items 
categorized as "free issue" totalling  115.

PWS5-30 Attachment 001 PWS, C-5 
Page 10, Para 5.17.3

How many shelf life items are stored?   Not provided in the Exhibit H Average 112 items.

PWS5-31 Attachment 001 PWS, C-5 
Page 10, Para 5.17.4

How many radioactive items are issued, received, turn-in and or stored?   Not provided 
in the Exhibit H

Radioactive items are not tracked individually and they are issued immediately 
upon receipt.  This information is included in the workload data. 

PWS5-32 Attachment 001 PWS, C-5 
Page 10, Para 5.17.10

How many materials and repair parts from vendors?   Not provided in the Exhibit H This paragraph will be removed from the PWS.  

PWS5-33 Attachment 001 PWS, C-5 
Page 10, Para 5.19.5

How many signature cards maintained?   Not provided in the Exhibit H Average of 65 signature cards.

PWS5-34 Attachment 001 PWS, C-5 
Page 11, Para 5.19.8

How many requisitions are submitted monthly?  Not provided in the Exhibit H Average 20 requisitions.

PWS5-35 Attachment 001 PWS, C-5 
Page 11, Para 5.19.10

How many escorts are required monthly?  Not provided in the Exhibit H Through coordination, the deliveries 99% of the time occur within duty hours.  We 
had one escort last FY.

PWS5-36 PRS, CIF,  C-5 PRS Page 14, 
5.12.1

How many lateral transfers processed  monthly?  Not provided in the Exhibit H This information is provided in TE 5-005.  

PWS5-37 PRS, CIF,  C-5 PRS Page 14, 
5.12.4

How many temporary loans are maintained monthly?  Not provided in the Exhibit H Temp loans are discouraged by the Accountable Officer.  Three temp loans were 
made last FY. 

PWS5-38 PRS, CIF,  C-5 PRS Page 15, 
5.11.1

How many Excess OCIE are reported monthly?  Not provided in the Exhibit H Fluctuates based on modernization of equipment i.e. Gen II to Gen III.  Currently, 
there are two LINs.  Size ranges from XS - XXL that equates to nine pillates of 
gear.  This information is provided in TE 5-005.  

PWS5-39 PRS, CIF,  C-5 PRS Page 16, 
5.12.1

How many OCIE requisitions are processed  monthly?  Not provided in the Exhibit H Not tracked individually based on CMO centralized procedures.  This information 
is provided in TE 5-005.

PWS5-40 PRS, CIF,  C-5 PRS Page 16, 
5.12.5

How many SRDs are processed  monthly?  Not provided in the Exhibit H Zero, based on centralized management of OCIE

PWS5-41 PRS, CIF,  C-5 PRS Page 17, 
5.12.1

How many AAR's are processed  monthly?  Not provided in the Exhibit H Average 25 AARs.

PWS5-42 PRS, CIF,  C-5 PRS Page 17, 
5.12.3

How many FLIPL's are processed  monthly?  Not provided in the Exhibit H Fluctuates based on Soldiers losing equipment.  An average of 10 a month.



PWS5-43 PRS, CIF,  C-5 PRS Page 17, 
5.12.4

How many bulk issues are processed  monthly?  Not provided in the Exhibit H Average of four bulk hand receipts.  Typically equipment is issued individually.  

PWS5-44 PRS, CIF,  C-5 PRS Page 17, 
5.12.3

How many inventories are accomplished?  Not provided in the Exhibit H They are performed IAW army regulations and PWS requirements.  A 100% 
inventory is performed at least annually or as needed.

PWS5-45 PRS, CIF,  C-5 PRS Page 18, 
5.12.3

How many turn-ins are processed  monthly?  Not provided in the Exhibit H Turn-in data is in Exhibit H.

PWS5-46 PRS, SSMO,  C-5 PRS Page 
19, 5.14.1

How many IAR's are processed  monthly?  Not provided in the Exhibit H They are performed IAW army regulations and PWS requirements.  No IARs were 
generated from last 100% inventory. 

PWS5-47 PRS, CIBPO,  C-5 PRS Page 
22, 5.15.3

How many AAR's are processed  monthly?  Not provided in the Exhibit H Average 20 AARs.

PWS5-48 PRS, CIBPO,  C-5 PRS Page 
24, 5.15.1

How many SDR's and QDR's are processed  monthly?  Not provided in the Exhibit H SDRs and QDRs are not tracked seperately.  This information is provided in TE 5-
005. 

PWS5-49 PRS, CIBPO,  C-5 PRS Page 
24, 5.15.7

How many FOIs are processed  monthly?  Not provided in the Exhibit H Average 12 FOIs.

PWS5-50 PRS, CIBPO,  C-5 PRS Page 
24, 5.15.9

How many CCI and other sensitive turn ins are processed  monthly?  Not provided in 
the Exhibit H

This information is not segregated and is inclusive in Exhibit H

PWS5-51 PRS, CIBPO,  C-5 PRS Page 
24, 5.15.7

How many lateral transfers are processed  monthly?  Not provided in the Exhibit H Lateral transfers are included in Exhibit H.

PWS5-52 PRS, CIBPO,  C-5 PRS Page 
24, 5.15.7

How many FLIPL's are processed  monthly?  Not provided in the Exhibit H Average three FLIPLs.

PWS5-53 PRS, CIBPO,  C-5 PRS Page 
26, 5.15.5

How many shelf life item are monitored  monthly?  Not provided in the Exhibit H Zero

PWS5-54 PRS, MD &  RSS,  C-5 PRS 
Page 27, 5.16.1

How many compressed gas requisitions are processed monthly?  Not provided in the 
Exhibit H

Zero

PWS5-55 PRS, MD &  RSS,  C-5 PRS 
Page 27, 5.16.1

How many FOI items are processed monthly?  Not provided in the Exhibit H Zero

PWS5-56 PRS, MD &  RSS,  C-5 PRS 
Page 27, 5.16.1

How many DLA withdrawal items are processed monthly?  Not provided in the Exhibit 
H

Zero

PWS5-57 PRS, MD &  RSS,  C-5 PRS 
Page 28, 5.16.1

How many warehouse denials are processed monthly?  Not provided in the Exhibit H Zero

PWS5-58 PRS, MD &  RSS,  C-5 PRS 
Page 28, 5.16.1

How many inventory adjustments are processed monthly?  Not provided in the Exhibit 
H

They are performed IAW army regulations and PWS requirements.  No IARs were 
generated from last 100% inventory. 

PWS5-59 PRS, MD &  RSS,  C-5 PRS 
Page 27 to 37

It appears several PRS items are duplicated in Material Distribution and Retail Supply 
Services area. Will the duplicated ones be removed?  

Yes, if applicable

PWS5-60 PRS, MD &  RSS,  C-5 PRS 
Page 34, 5.16.9

How many turn in, shipments, receipts are processed in the arms room monthly?  Not 
provided in the Exhibit H

Average one a month.  

PWS5-61 PRS, MD &  RSS,  C-5 PRS 
Page 34 n 35, 5.16.9

How many line items are in the arms room?  Not provided in the Exhibit H None.  A monitored bunker is temporarily used for storage.  Disposition 
instructions are provided and coordinated to minimize equipment on hand.



PWS5-62 PRS, HAZMAT,  C-5 PRS 
Page 37, 5.17.4

How many issues are handled monthly?  Not provided in the Exhibit H 47 ASL items a month, 67 Free Issues a month = 114 (average) /Free issue is H/M 
turned in by customer that can be reutilized. 

PWS5-63 PRS, HAZMAT,  C-5 PRS 
Page 38, 5.17.3

How many turn-ins are processed  monthly?  Not provided in the Exhibit H 4 ASL/59 Free Issues monthly = 63 (average)

PWS5-64 PRS, ASS,  C-5 PRS Page 39, 
5.19.1

How many receipts are processed  monthly?  Not provided in the Exhibit H Average of 13 receipts.

PWS5-65 PRS, ASS,  C-5 PRS Page 39, 
5.19.1

How many vehicles are inspected  monthly?  Not provided in the Exhibit H Average of 20 vehicles. 

PWS5-66 PRS, ASS,  C-5 PRS Page 40, 
5.19.1

How many requisitions are processed monthly?  Not provided in the Exhibit H Average of 13 requsitions

PWS5-67 PRS, ASS,  C-5 PRS Page 42, 
5.19.2

How many suspension and restrictions notices are processed monthly?  Not provided in 
the Exhibit H

This is not tracked, but four were received last FY.  

PWS5-68 PRS, ASS,  C-5 PRS Page 41, 
5.19.1

How many DEMIL actions are processed monthly?  Not provided in the Exhibit H Average of one demil per year.

PWS5-69 PWS Section C-5 Page 3, Para 
5.3.4

How many Maintenance Support Teams are on Ft Gordon and what is location and 
what do they support?

Number of Remote Shops are provided in TE 5-004.  They support various type of 
communications equipment and this information is provided in TE 5-001.

PWS5-70 PWS Section C-5 Page 3, Para 
5.3.4

Are SAMS-1 Clerks currently used for Maintenance Support Teams are on Ft Gordon 
and if so what are the locations?

No  

PWS5-71 PWS Section C-5 Page 3, Para 
5.3.6

The supported locations are not listed in TE 5-001.  Will the government provide those 
locations as stated in the PWS?

This information is provided in TE-5004.

PWS5-72 PWS Section C-5 Page 3, Para 
5.3.4.2

How many current service locations are on the contract and where so we my provide the 
appropriate site lead and price accordingly?

Number of Remote Shops are provided in TE-5004.  

PWS5-73 PWS Section C-5 Page 4, Para 
5.4.2.4

Does this Para apply as Ft Campbell is addressed here? No.  This should read Fort Gordon Fire Department.

PWS5-74 PWS Section C-5 Page 4, Para 
5.4.2.5

How many equipment recoveries are accomplished yearly? For FY12 there were approximately 66 recovery jobs completed.

PWS5-75 PWS Section C-5 Page 5, Para 
5.4.4

Where is the Range Maintenance Shop located? What is the workload associated as it is 
not listed in TE 5-001?

The location is building #14608.  Workload data for all shops are inclusive in TE 5-
001.

PWS5-76 Attachment_0001_-
_Performance_Work_Statemen
t_(PWS),  Section C-5 Page 
46, para C-5.21.1

Will the Government clarify if the Contractor is required to staff and run an A/DACG 
or are they supporting A/DACG operations through an assigned military unit?

The UMC controlls the A/DACG operations with the units assisting.  The 
requirements for those type of operations is generally lesss then three times 
annually. Unit movement workload data is contained in transportation exhibit J.

PWS5-77 Attachment_0001_-
_Performance_Work_Statemen
t_(PWS),  Section C-5 Page 
52, para C-5.28.5

PWS 5.28.5 states "The contractor shall provide vehicle operators during normal 
operation hours to support Installation activities, soldier training transport operations, 
and special activities. Bus and driver service is normally within the confines of Fort 
Gordon; bus and driver service off Fort Gordon shall be limited to a 75‐mile radius of 
the motor pool unless approved by the ITO/DR."  Is the Contractor required to provide 
a post-wide shuttle bus service? 

No.



PWS5-78 Attachment_0001_-
_Performance_Work_Statemen
t_(PWS),  Section C-5 Page 
52, para C-5.28.6; TE 5-006 
Transportation Workload 

Will the Government further define the Contractor bus driver requirements to meet the 
Soldier transportation, Warrior Transition Unit, and NSA passenger missions?  
Definition as to number of scheduled runs, any shuttle schedules, requirement 
timeframes, and destinations would be helpful to accurately estimate Contractor 
requirements. 

NSA passenger missions are not part of this requirement.  Applicable workload is 
defined as provided exhibit J.

PWS5-79 Attachment_0001_-
_Performance_Work_Statemen
t_(PWS),  Section C-5 Page 
51, para C-5.28.1; Exhibit A - 
TE 1-001 - GFP_Services 

PWS C-5.28.1 states "The contractor shall manage and operate a Transportation Motor 
Pool (TMP) providing services to include: general administration, dispatch and control 
of the GSA fleet…" Will the Government provide the type and number of vehicles and 
equipment that is in the current GSA fleet? 

Approximately 500 vehicles, mostly utility trucks or vans, and sedans

PWS5-80 Attachment 0001 PWS Section 
C-5 Page 3, Para 5.3.3

Will the Government please provide projected workload data and density listings for 
each Special Program Metric: LBE, Reset, PDTE and Base Operations)?

LBE, RESET, PDTE and Base Operations workload data is inclusive in TE 5-001.

PWS5-81 Attachment 0001 PWS Section 
C-5 Page 3, Para 5.3.6

Will the Government please provide Projected Workload data and density listing for 
each Remote Contract Maintenance Team?

Remote shops workload data is inclusive with data provided in TE-5-001.

PWS5-82 Attachment_0001_-
_Performance_Work_Statemen
t_(PWS),  Section C-5 Page 
50, para C-5.27.3

Will the Government please provide historical workload for Material Movements 
(Freight) requirements out of the Gillem Enclave?  Data requested would include 
number, type and commodity of shipments and number of trips conducted to the Gillem 
Enclave itself.

500 shipments of general freight; sometimes requiring up to two trips a week.

PWS5-83 Attachment_0001_-
_Performance_Work_Statemen
t_(PWS),  Section C-2 Page 4, 
Controlled Inventory Item 
Codes

The Controlled Inventory Item Codes list implies that there may be up to Top Secret 
equipment that the contractor will be responsible for maintaining. What is the highest 
security classification of equipment that bidders will be responsible for on this 
solicitation?

Secret. 

PWS5-84 Attachment_0001_-
_Performance_Work_Statemen
t_(PWS),  Section C-5 Page 5, 
para 5.4.3.3

Will the Government please provide workload to perform fuel and water drum 
maintenance task?

Fuel and water workload data is inclusive with data provided in TE-5-001.

PWS5-85 Exhibit H, TE 5 - 001 Material 
Maintenance Workload Data

the Material Maintenance Workload is provided by functions without reference to PWS 
tasks or locations where the work is accomplished as specified at Exhibit G - TE 5-004.
Please align workload by PWS items, as per Supply and Transportation Exhibits.

Material Maintenance has numerous maintenance locations and does not track 
workload by location.  Workload data is tracked by function type (Smalls Arms 
Repair, COMSEC, C&E, V&E).  Workload data is sufficient.

PWS5-86 Attachment 0001 PWS, Supply 
and and Services; Exhibit H - 
TE 5-005 - Supply Workload

Attachment 0001 and Exhibit H do not match up with referenced paragraph numbers. 
For instance, the first line on Exhibit H references C.5.14.2, but there is no PWS para 
C.5.14.2, nor do the other PWS para referenced in Exhibit H cross-reference to 
Attachment 0001. Will the Government revise Exhibit H references according to 
Attachment 0001 paragraphing?

These documents will be revised in a future amendment to the solicitaiton.  



PWS5-87 Attachment 0001 PWS, 
Section C-3 Government 
Furnished Property (GFP) and 
Services, para 3.4; Section C-
Transportation, para 5.28 
Motor Pool Operations; CDRL 
CD-07: GSA Vehicle Dispatch 
Record

The solicitation does not contain a listing of supported GSA Vehicles referred to in 
PWS para 3.4 GSA Vehicles. PWS para 5.28 Motor Pool Operations requires the 
contractor to dispatch and control the GSA fleet. Will the Government provide a GSA 
Vehicle listing, by category of vehicle, such as sedan, pick-up, wrecker, stake-bed, bus, 
van, etc.?

Dispatch and control of GSA vehicles is not affected by the type of vehicle. There 
are approximately 500 GSA vehicle under the TMP control.

PWS5-88 Attachment 0001 PWS Section 
C-5 Page 3, para 5.3.4.2; 
Exhibit G - TE 5-004, 
Government Provided 
Locations

PWS para 5.3.4.2 requires a Lead for each service location. Exhibit G identifies 15 
maintenance locations. Will the Government please clarify their interpretation of a 
'service location', such as those identified in Exhibit G?

Each material maintenance site must have a responsible lead person on site.  
Locations are listed in TE-5004

PWS5-89 Attachment 0001 PWS, para 
5.28.3; Exhibit J - TE5-0006, 
para A

PWS para 5.28.3 states the average contractor workload for issuing OF346 operator 
licenses monthly is 3, or 36 annually. Exhibit J, para A says the projected workload for 
issuing operator licenses is 1,623 annually, or 135 monthly. Will the Government 
please clarify the ambugity between the two documents?

The PWS will be corrected.  The correct information is contained in the workload 
data  Exhibit J, TE 5-006, para A. The actual number of operator licenses issued 
during FY12 was 2695, projected was 1623. 

PWS5-90 PWS Section C-5, Page 1, 
Paragraph 5.1.3.1 

This paragraph refers to work "throughout Ft Gordon and surrounding areas." Please 
identify the areas that are not on FT Gordon proper.

Please see PWS, Paragraph 1.1.1.

PWS5-91 PWS Section C-5, Page 10, 
Paragraph 5.17.4 

Request the government specify the types and quantities of radioactive material 
normally handled by the HAZMAT staff.

None.   

PWS5-92 PWS Section C-5, Page 10, 
Paragraph 5.17.10 

This paragraph requires the contractor to "pick up materials and repair parts at those 
vendor locations that do not deliver to Fort Gordon." Request the government identify 
(1)Where the locations off of Fort Gordon are; (2) How often trips are made to these 
sites; (3) If government transportation/vehicle is provided; (4) If the vehicle provided 
by the government requires a CDL with HAZARDOUS CARGO certification; and (5) 
if overnight stays/per diem are required for any of the sites?

Paragraph 5.17.10 will be removed from the PWS.  

PWS5-93 PWS Section C-5, Page 11, 
paragraph 5.19  
& Exhibit H - TE 5-005 
Supply Workload

Request the government provide a listing by DODAC/Nomenclature of the types of 
Class V stored at the ASP.

Additional information regarding the types of Class V will not be provided. 

PWS5-94 PWS Section C-5, Page 11, 
Paragraph 5.19

Request the government confirm that there are no armed or unarmed guards 
requirements required to be provided by the contractor at the ASP.

Correct. 

PWS5-95 PWS Section C-5, Page 11, 
Paragraph 5.19.1 

Request the government provide a list of grounds maintenance equipment provided at 
the ASP as GFE.

Paragraph 3.8.6 will be revised in the PWS.  The contractor is not responsible for 
lawn maintenance at the ASP. 

PWS5-96 PWS Section C-5, Page 11, 
Paragraph 5.19.1 

Is the grounds maintenance work at the ASP currently conducted by the contractor or 
through a separate contract?

The grounds maintenance work at the ASP is provided through a separate contract. 

PWS5-97 PWS Section C-5, Page 11, 
Paragraph 5.19.1 ASP

How many acres are required to be mowed IAW this paragraph? The grounds maintenance work at the ASP is provided through a separate contract. 



PWS5-98 PWS Section C-5, Page 11, 
Paragraph 5.19.1 

How many miles of fence line are required to be mowed/maintained IAW this 
paragraph?

The grounds maintenance work is provided through a separate contract. 

PWS5-99 PWS Section C-5, Page 12, 
Paragraph 5.19.10 Escort 
Requirements

Request the government confirm that there are no armed guard or escort requirements 
required in the performance of this contract.

Correct, there are no armed guard or escort requirements required in the 
performance of this contract.

PWS5-100 Attachment 0001 PWS, 
Section C-5 page 5

What size are the water and fuel drums referred to in PWS paragraph 5.4.3.3? Paragraph 5.4.3.3 will be removed from the PWS.

PWS5-101 Attachment 0001 PWS, 
Section C-46, page 3 and Site 
Visit 16Jan13

a.  During the site visit at Building 1000, Mobility Processing Facility,  the Government 
briefer mentioned that mobility cargo movements were supported at Bush Airfield in 
Augusta, GA and at Hunter Army Airfield in Savannah, GA.   Hunter Army Airfield is 
not mentioned in the PWS.  Please clarify if the service provider will be required to 
provide the A/DACG services in PWS 5.21 at both Bush Airfield and Hunter Army 
Airfield.
b.  If yes, how many A/DACG (events/cargo movements etc.) at Hunter Army airfield 
are anticipated annually?  

Slide 2 of the Briefing contains a disclaimer regarding information provided on the 
slides.  This disclaimer was also read aloud during the briefing and states "Slides 
presented in this briefing are for informational purposes only.  Offerors should only 
propose requirements as specified in the Performance Work Statement (PWS)". 

PWS5-102 PWS, Section C-5, Page 6; 
(para 5.15.5), Individual 
Chemical Equipment 
Management Program

The requirement states that "The contractor shall operate and maintain the chemical 
defense equipment warehouse…"  However, there was no stand alone ICEMP 
warehouse accounted for in the documents or during the site visit.  Is the ICEMP 
warehouse and stand-alone facility, or is it shared space in a warehouse facility being 
utilized for other tasks (i.e. the SSA)?

Paragraph 5.15.5 will be revised to remove "warehouse"

PWS5-103 PWS, Section C-5 page 1, 
paragraph 5.1.1

Is Reset and LBE performed in a dedicated shop/section or site? No.  When needed, RESET and LBE work is performed in existing locations listed 
in TE-5004 and based on type of equipment needing repair.

PWS5-104 PWS, Section C-5 page 6, 
paragraph 5.15.4; Exhibit L, 
TE 5-008; and Exhibit M, TE 5-
009.

PWS indicates the furnishings management is a CIPBO responsibility however, Exhibit 
L TE 5-008 indicates the Furnishings Management Branch (FMB) is a SSA 
responsibility and Exhibit M TE 5-009, the CIPBO SOP is silent on responsibilities of 
the FMB. Where does the FMB responsibilities fall within the Supply & Services 
organization?

FMB will not be a part of this contract. 

PWS5-105 PWS, Section C-5, page 2, 
paragraph 5.1.4.1

Please define "CCEP" and "MCoE DOTS" Paragraph 5.1.4.1 will be revised in the PWS. 



PWS5-106 Fort Gordon, GA PWS 
revision 1, dtd 06 February 
2013, p. 5 Section C-3. 
paragraph 3.8.6.

Did the government inadvertently leave the statement "The contractor will be 
responsible for incidental grass (weed) trimming / moving not provided under 
the Directorate of Public Works (DPW) such as areas between container, 
vehicles around buildings (only pertains to areas under the contractors control)?  
The offeror asks this question since PWS 3.8.6 states there already is a post-wide 
grass cutting contract and the recent PWS revision deletes the statement  
"contractor requirement to maintain  lawnmower equipment and mow areas 
within the fenced area”.  The government's deletion of the previous statement 
seems to imply an elimination of both the grass cutting requirement as well as 
the equipment/ability to perform the work.                             

No, the Government did not inadvertently omit that statement.  As stated in the 
PWS, the contractor will be responsible for incidental grass (weed) 
trimming/mowing not provided under the DPW, but only for areas under the 
contractor's control. 

Question # RFP Reference QUESTION ANSWER
Att-1 Attachment 0007, pages 23-25 Article XXI indicates 10 holidays, Article XXII indicates 10 days vacation (or more, 

based on seniority), and Article XXIII appears to indicate an additional allotment of 
2.77 hours per pay period as "personal Leave". Will the Government please clarify if 
this is in addtion to the 10 days vacation and the number of pay periods?

The PWS in conjunction with the CBA and Wage Determinations provided as 
Attachment 0007 and 0010 respectively should inform the Offeror how to propose. 
Additional information is not available.

Att-2 Attachment 0007, Article 
XVIII, page 19

Section 1. refers to Davis-Bacon work. Will the Government please provide the 
appropriate wage determination for this Davis-Bacon work?

The Davis Bacon Act does not apply to this requirement.

Att-3 0002 Staffing/Labor Matrix, 
Title

"Fort Hood" is shown in the spreadsheet. Should this be replaced with "Fort Gordon"? Please see Amendment 0002 to the solicitation.    

Att-4 Attachment_0002_-
_Performance_Work_Statemen
t_(PWS),  Staffing Labor Mix

This attachment was designed with the belief that all employees have the same annual 
productive hours. Will the government allow bidders to modify attachment 2 to include 
a new column between existing B and C for designating the annual productive hours for 
each position title?

No, Offerors must propose in accordance with L.5.2.1.3.1.

Att-5 Attachment_0002_-
_Performance_Work_Statemen
t_(PWS),  Staffing Labor Mix

Instructions to offerors number 2 states "FULL TIME EMPLOYEES ONLY.  Use of 
Contractor Manpower Equivalents is not authorized." Is it the Government's intent that 
the FTE numbers are to be rounded to whole numbers only, no decimals?

Yes, FTE numbers shall be provided in whole numbers. 

Att-6 Att. 7 – CBA; Article X, p. 8-9 
– Seniority & Article XXII - 
Vacations, p. 10-11

It is the offeror’s understanding that the subject contract has been covered by a CBA 
since 01-Oct-95 while it has been a contracted operation well before that.  Specifically, 
for purposes of seniority/vacation assumptions, are offerors required to account for this 
“pre-CBA” time in their seniority/vacation assumptions?  In other words, is the time 
prior to this contract being collectively bargained required to be considered in 
seniority/vacation assumptions/calculations?  

The PWS in conjunction with the CBA and Wage Determinations provided as 
Attachment 0007 and 0010 respectively should inform the Offeror how to propose.   
No additional information is available.

Attachment Questions



Att-7 Collective Bargaining 
Agreement

In the CBA, the pay period is not clearly defined.  However, in Article II, Section 2, 
paragraph g), it states "…deduct one-half of the monthly dues from the first and second 
pay periods of ech month…".  Later in the same paragraph, it states "In those instances 
whewre there are three pay periods in the month...".  Could the Government please 
confirm that the CBA pay period is every 2 weeks?

No additional information is available.

Att-8 CBA Section 5, Insurance Employers pay 85% of total premium for Medical/Dental/Vision and 70% of total 
premium for Short Term Disability STD). While STD is straightforward, 
Medical/Dental/Vision does not indicate whether this is employee only or family 
coverage. If this is to include family coverage, will the Government please provide a 
percentage of those with family coverage so that the premium may be properly reflected 
in offerors’ price proposal?

No additional information is available.

Att-9 Attachment 0005 The cells for Offeror and CAGE Code are locked and the columns are too narrow to 
display all data. Will the Government please provide an adjusted Attachment 0005 to 
accommodate data entry and display?

Please see Attachment 0005 with Amendment 0004 to the solicitation.

Att-10 Attachment 0006, Mission 
Essential Contractor Services

Attachment 0006 identifies Installation Forestry Equipment as a Mission Essential 
Contractor Services, however no workload data was provided for this effort. In addition 
the PWS does not identify requirements for installation of Forestry Equipment.

Question: Can the government provide further information on this requirement?

Workload data for Forestry Equipment is inclusive of workload data provided in 
TE 5-001.  Types of Forestry Equipment is inclusive of data provided in TE-5-001.  
Requirements for Foresty Equipment is part of Sustainment Maintenance and 
inculsuvie of information provided in TE 5-013. 

Att-11 Attachment 0006, Mission 
Essential Contractor Services

The MECS list the tasks identified as mission essential, but there are no PWS 
references. While some of areas match up (i.e. Pass-back Maintenance), others could 
relate to numerous areas (i.e. Mobilization). 

Question: Can the government please provide PWS references for the work covered 
under the MECS?

Attachment 0006 will be revised in a future amendment to the solicitation. 

Att-12 RFP Reference: Fort Gordon 
CBA, RFP Attachment 0007, 
Article XXIII, Section 8, pg 27

Concerning Union Representative Shared Cost, the paragraph states, in part “…but 
his/her benefits will be paid at the rates described in their employer’s CBA. This 
paragraph references a second CBA which defines fringe costs for the representative.  

Question: Will the government be providing the second CBA or provide the fringe 
rates the contractor is obligated to support?

There is only one CBA and it is provided as Attachment 0007.

Att-13 Attachment 0005 Cost/Price 
Matrix; Schedule B CLIN 
listing

Dollar amounts are attributed to 'Other Direct Costs'. Are these dollars intended as 
'plug' numbers?  If yes, please clarify what costs are included in the plug number 
amount (i.e., materials, supplies, fuel, etc.).

Please refer to Section L, paragraph L.5.4.3.4.

Att-14 Attachment 0005 Cost/Price 
Matrix

Can the Government please clarify what the amount listed on Column I, row 22 
represents?  The description title shown for Row 22 is "Option to Extend Service IAW 
clause 52.217-8", but that row is blocked out in black for columns D thru H. 

Please refer to Section L, paragraph L.5.4.3.6 of the solicitation.  As part of the 
price evaluation, the Government will evaluate the Option to Extend Services under 
FAR Clause 52.217-8 by adding one-half of the Offeror's final option period price 
to the Offeror's total price.  



Att-15 CBA, Page 24, Article XXII, 
paragraph (a)

Given the requirement to offer right of first refusal for service employees, will the 
Government provide a seniority list to ensure realistic estimating of labor costs?

IAW FAR 22.1020, a seniority list will be provided to the successor contractor at 
the commencement of the succeeding contract.

Att-16 Attachment 0002 Staffing 
Labor Mix

The 'Instructions to Offerors' in Attachment 2 include the following statement: "FULL 
TIME EMPLOYEES ONLY.  Use of Contractor Manpower Equivalents is not 
authorized."  Can the Government please clarify if bidders are required to bid only full 
time positions (i.e., no partial FTEs allowed) on this Fort Gordon EAGLE solicitation?  
If yes, does this requirement also apply to each "Work/Cost Center", such that no 
partial FTEs may be bid in individual work/cost centers? 

FTE's shall be provided in whole numbers.  

Att-17 Attachment 0002 Staffing 
Labor Mix

The column headers in Attachment 2 state "Insert Work/Cost Center Title Here".  To 
help bidders properly complete the attachment, can the Government please clarify the 
term "Work/Cost Center" as it applies to this Fort Gordon EAGLE PWS and to 
Attachment 2?  We did not find a definition in the PWS.

The RFP wording is provided to allow flexibility for alternative contractor 
approaches.  The recommended approach is 1) to align the column headers with 
PWS paragraph references/titles.  It is also acceptable to 2) use PWS paragraph 
references alone, 3) the contractors work breakdown structure naming conventions, 
or 4) mission oriented naming conventions.  The minimum requirement is that all 
functional areas with staffing requirements are identified in attachment 0002 and 
that there is sufficient detail to allow evaluators to identify if the contractor fully 
understands the requirements and is able to staff it with sufficient number and labor 
categories.

Att-18 Collective Bargaining 
Agreement between AKIMA 
FACILITIES 
MANAGEMENT, LLC and 
Transportation Workers Union 
dated October 1, 2011 Page 
27, Section 8. Union 
Representative

Please clarify the term “Fort Gordon employee/TWU member”.  Are we correct to 
assume that this individual is actually an employee of either the contractor or the 
Transportation Worker Union and is actually not a “Fort Gordon employee”?

The PWS in conjunction with the CBA and Wage Determinations provided as 
Attachment 0007 and 0010 respectively should inform the Offeror how to propose.   
No additional information is available.

Att-19 Collective Bargaining 
Agreement between AKIMA 
FACILITIES 
MANAGEMENT, LLC and 
Transportation Workers Union 
dated October 1, 2011 Page 
27, Section 8. Union 
Representative

Please clarify the service providers requirements for including the “Union 
Representative “costs in our cost proposal (salary and benefits provided 50% by the 
service provider).

The PWS in conjunction with the CBA and Wage Determinations provided as 
Attachment 0007 and 0010 respectively should inform the Offeror how to propose.   
No additional information is available.



Att-20 Collective Bargaining 
Agreement between AKIMA 
FACILITIES 
MANAGEMENT, LLC and 
Transportation Workers Union 
dated October 1, 2011 Page 
27, Section 8. Union 
Representative

Should this “Union Representative” costs be included in the contractor’s overhead costs 
or included in our Cost Plus labor costs?

The PWS in conjunction with the CBA and Wage Determinations provided as 
Attachment 0007 and 0010 respectively should inform the Offeror how to propose.   
No additional information is available.

Att-21 Collective Bargaining 
Agreement between AKIMA 
FACILITIES 
MANAGEMENT, LLC and 
Transportation Workers Union 
dated October 1, 2011 Page 
27, Section 8. Union 
Representative

Should this “Union Representative” be shown on our organization and staffing charts 
with 50% of the annual hours for this individual?

The PWS in conjunction with the CBA and Wage Determinations provided as 
Attachment 0007 and 0010 respectively should inform the Offeror how to propose.   
No additional information is available.

Att-22 Collective Bargaining 
Agreement between AKIMA 
FACILITIES 
MANAGEMENT, LLC and 
Transportation Workers Union 
dated October 1, 2011 Page 
27, Section 8. Union 
Representative

Will this “Union Representative” be considered a Union employee or a contractor 
employee for labor relations purposes?

The PWS in conjunction with the CBA and Wage Determinations provided as 
Attachment 0007 and 0010 respectively should inform the Offeror how to propose.   
No additional information is available.

Att-23 Collective Bargaining 
Agreement between AKIMA 
FACILITIES 
MANAGEMENT, LLC and 
Transportation Workers Union 
dated October 1, 2011 Page 
27, Section 8. Union 
Representative

Who will supervise this “Union Representative”, the contractor’s management or the 
Transportation Workers Union Management?

The PWS in conjunction with the CBA and Wage Determinations provided as 
Attachment 0007 and 0010 respectively should inform the Offeror how to propose.   
No additional information is available.



Att-24 Collective Bargaining 
Agreement between AKIMA 
FACILITIES 
MANAGEMENT, LLC and 
Transportation Workers Union 
dated October 1, 2011 Page 
27, Section 8. Union 
Representative

If this “Union Representative” is injured on the job will the Union or the contractor be 
responsible for any workman’s compensation or other legal matters that may arise?

The PWS in conjunction with the CBA and Wage Determinations provided as 
Attachment 0007 and 0010 respectively should inform the Offeror how to propose.   
No additional information is available.

Att-25 DD FORM 254, DoD Contract 
Security Classification 
Specification

The DD 254, block 1. b. states (None) that no level of safeguarding is required, 
however, the PWS Para 1.5.3.1 states that "when required, the contractor will maintain 
capabilities for receipt, storage and generation of classified material, up to and 
including SECRET, in accordance with..."  Is the DD 254 correct, or should there be a 
level of Safeguarding identified to offerors in the DD 254?

Block 1b: Safeguarding Classified Material refers to storage and safeguarding 
requirements and capability at a Contractor's facility.  Under this contract, all 
classified material will be maintained on Fort Gordon.  The contractor can (and 
will) be required to store/maintain classified material up to SECRET on Fort 
Gordon.  This is specfic to certain requirements and personnel, not all.

Att-26 DD FORM 254, DoD Contract 
Security Classification 
Specification

The DD 254, block 10. a. states that the Contractor will require access to 
Communications Security Information ("Yes"), however Block 11. h. states that the 
Contractor will not require a COMSEC account ("No").  Is this a contradiction, or is 
there no account required to receive, access, store, test and otherwise handle COMSEC 
equipment associated with maintenance and repair?

The Contractor will not have a COMSEC account.   No account is required to 
receive, access, store, test, and otherwise handle COMSEC equipment associated 
with maintenance and repair.  The Contractor may be required to sign as a hand 
receipt (end user) but will not have an account. 

Att-27 DD FORM 254, DoD Contract 
Security Classification 
Specification

The DD 254, block 13. [Ref 10k] states that "SIPRNET access required."  However, 
block 10. k. (Other) states, "SIPR access Required, (No)".  Is SIPR access required by 
the Contractor, and if so, how willl the contractor access the SIPENET (i.e. whose 
computers)?

Block 10.k. is a typo and should be marked "Yes."  

Att-28 Attachment 0005 Columns in the Attachment 0005 do not allow display of totals for some of the option 
years and the total. Will the Government please provde an Attachment 0005 with wider 
columns?

Please see the revised Attachment 0005, Cost/Price Matrix in Amendment 0006 to 
the solicitation. 

Question # RFP Reference QUESTION ANSWER
Ex-1 TE 5-001 Is the workload for remote communications and electronics sites included in TE 5-001? Communication and Electronics workload data for main and remote shops are 

inclusive with data provided in TE 5-001
Ex-2 Exhibit H - TE 5-005- Supply 

workload
The supply workload for each task has a PWS reference. For instance the first on 
Insignas sewn (C.5.14.2) however the reference does not refer to the PWS that we are 
to use. In this case C.5.14 is the TISA and does not have a PWS 5.14.2.   None of PWS 
numbers referenced in TE 5-005 match the the paragraphs in the PWS. 
Question:  Please provide the correct PWS references for each service referenced in this 
workload data in Exhibit H TE 5-005.

Disregard the paragraph numbers in Exhibit H.

Exhibit Questions



Ex-3 Exhibit K - TE 5 007 TMP 
Workload

Will the PWS Reference Paragraph be corrected to reflect current PWS? The PWS Reference Paragraph will be removed from the document. 

Ex-5 Exhibit J - TE 5 006 
Transportation Workload

Will the PWS Referenced Paragraphs be corrected to reflect current PWS? The PWS Reference Paragraph will be removed from the document. 

Ex-6 Exhibit H- TE 5-005  Item 15 
Laundry A thru JJ

Please identify in where this is accomplished in the PWS as it seems to be missing in 
the PWS.  Should this be deleted from Exhibit H TE 5-005? 

No laundry operations will be performed by the contractor.  TE 5-005 will be 
revised to remove this requirement. 

Ex-7 Exhibit H- TE 5-005  Item 11 
Furnishing Management BR  A 
thru F

Please identify in where this is accomplished in the PWS as it seems to be missing in 
the PWS.  Should this be deleted from Exhibit H TE 5-005? 

FMB will not be part of the contract.  TE 5-005 will be revised to remove this 
requirement. 

Ex-8 Exhibit H - TE 5-005 All pages Will the Government update the PWS reference in the exhibit to the current PWS for 
this opportunity?

N/A as FMB will not be a part of the contract. 

Ex-9 Exhibit G, TE 5-004 Are  personnel currently required at all the locations listed in this Exhibit and doe the 
government expect this to be same for the follow on contract?

Support is required at all locations for Maintenance Support

Ex-10 Exhibit G, TE 5-004 Are the Emergency Generators and ADPE accounted for in the Work Order Table at 
the top of the page or are they in addition to the table?  

Emergency Generators and ADPE workload data is inclusive of data provided in 
Exhibit TE 5-001

Ex-11 Exhibit K - TE 5-007 - TMP 
Workload, Items "J." and "K."

Will the Government clarify if there is a requirement for the Transportation Division to 
deliver or pick-up fuel for the Central Fuel Point (or any other location)?

There is no requirement for delivery or pick-up of fuel.  

Ex-12 Exhibit E - TE 5-002 - FMX 
Field Level Maintenance 
Support SOP Page 10, para 
1.4.1

TE 5-002 states contractor shall establish and maintain dedicated Sustainment 
Automation Support Management Support (SASMO) help desk.  Will the Government 
Please provide support log historical data.

SASMO support is not a requirement for this contract/PWS.

Ex-13 Exhibit E - TE 5-002 - FMX 
Field Level Maintenance 
Support SOP Page 24, para 
1.12.8.1

Will the Government please provide workload data for Field Level Maintenance Team 
in support of the 442d Signal Battalion and SigCoE Motor Pool.

Field Level Maintenance workload data is inclusive of data provided in Exhibit TE 
5-001

Ex-14 Exhibit E - TE 5-002 - FMX 
Field Level Maintenance 
Support SOP Page 24, para 
1.12.9.1

Will the Government please provide workload data for Field Level Maintenance Team 
in support of the 15th Signal Brigade, 73rd Ordnance and OEMTD.

Field Level Maintenance workload data is inclusive of data provided in Exhibit TE 
5-001

Ex-15 Attachment 0001 PWS, para 
1.1.2 (Section C-1, page 1) and 
para  5.11 (Section C-5, page 
2); Exhibit H - TE 5-005 - 
Supply Workload, line 15, 
Sheet 14-4

Exhibit H, line 15 provides workload data for Laundry Operations. Lines 15 A - 15JJ, 
sheet 14-4 - 14-6 have data or some are zero (0). Attachment 0001 paragraphs 1.1.2 and 
5.11 do not identify laundry operations as a requirement. Will the Government please 
clarify Exhibit H, Lines 15A - 15JJ as to their applicability to the requirements?

Laundry will not be performed under this contract.  Mission is being performed 
with contract in place.

Ex-16 Technical Exhibit 5-001, 
Material Maintenance 
Workload Data FY12, page 1

There is not a listing of Work Orders associated with Allied Trades. Please provide a 
number of Work Orders so that an accurate estimate of the requirements can be 
conducted.

TE 5-001 will be revised in a future amendment to the solicitation. 



Ex-17 Technical Exhibit 5-001, 
Material Maintenance 
Workload Data FY12, page 2

The RFP says: "The following is a list of other office equipment that is currently 
repaired on sub-contracts either one-time or by maintenance contracts." Is it the intent 
of the Government that the list of Office Automation Equipment Repaired on Sub-
Contracts becomes part of the workload of EAGLE?

Yes, The subcontract information in TE 5-001 is provided because subcontract 
maintenance will be coordinated by the contractor for this equipment. The 
contractor is responsible for coordinating subcontract maintenance if necessary to 
meet requirements when it is more economical and beyond their capabilities. 
Requirement for subcontracted work is provided in TE 5-013.  

Ex-18 Technical Exhibit 5-001, 
Material Maintenance 
Workload, Equipment Density 
Listing, page 10.

Halfway down the listing is a Generator Set, 2100KW Kohler. That is a very large size 
generator for a Kohler. Is the KW listing for this equipment correct? Please clarify.

Yes, this is an emergency generator that is supported by Material Maintenance.

Ex-19 Technical Exhibit 5-001, 
Material Maintenance 
Workload, Equipment Density 
Listing, pages 19 - 21.

Density listing contains "GSA" as part of the description on 131 items of 
vehicles/equipment. What is the contractor's responsibility for this equipment listed as 
GSA? Please clarify.

Please refer to TE 5-013. 

Ex-20 Technical Exhibit 5-001, 
Material Maintenance 
Workload, Equipment Density 
Listing, page 19 .

Twelve traffic lights are listed. What is the contractor's responsibility regarding the 
traffic lights?

Responsibilities are first level maintenance responder when a traffic light goes out, 
replacing light bulbs, troubleshooting, connectivity, etc.  

Ex-21 Technical Exhibit D-5-001, 
Pages 1 and 2, Emergency 
Generators Supported list

The list includes a number of Emergency Generators to be maintained.  Are the service 
calls for these assets included in one of the four work order data categories included in 
the table at the top of Page 1 of this technical exhibit?  If so, which category? If not, do 
you have specific work order data for these assets.

TE 5-001 will be revised in a future amendment to the solicitation. 

Ex-22 Technical Exhibit D-5-001, 
Pages 2 and 3, Listing of 
Office Automation Equipment 
Repaired on Sub-Contracts

This list identifies a number of assets that are currently repaired on sub-contract through 
a one-time effort or by maintenance contract.  Is the maintenance and repair of these 
assets to be considered part of the labor within CLIN 0002 or are service contracts and 
one-time repairs of office automation equipment  to be considered ODCs and covered 
under CLIN 0005?

The contractor is not responsible for performing maintenance and repair of 
subcontraced equipment.  The requirement for coordinating subcontracted work is 
covered under ODC, CLIN 0005. 

Ex-23 Technical Exhibit D-5-001, 
Pages 2 through 22, Automated 
Data Processing Equipment 
(Pages 3 and 4) and Equipment 
Density List (Pages 5 through 
22)

The Automated Data Processing List shows over 11,600 pieces of ADPE covered on 
this contract and the overall density list only shows 14,777 items in total.  In reviewing 
the two lists, it is noted that the Density list has only a little over a hundred printer while 
the ADPE list shows almost 3000 printers to be maintained and the ADPE list indicates 
over 3600 computers to be repaired and the density list has just a little over a thousand 
listed.  Which list should be used as the basis for workload estimating or are these two 
list counting different assets?

The Equipment Density Listing is a list of equipment Material Maintenance 
repaired at one time or another.  The Automated Data Processing Equipment 
Listing is a list of equipment throughout the installation.  All ADPE equipment does 
not need repairing and therefore does not get submitted to Material Maintenance 
prior to its Life Cycle Replace.



Ex-24 Technical Exhibit D-5-001, 
Page 1 and pages 5 through 22, 
Material Maintenance 
Workload Data FY12 (Page 1) 
and Equipment Density List 
(Pages 5 through 22)

Are all work orders generated in FY12 for the for the repair of assets listed on the 
Equipment Density list captured in one of the four workload categories listed in the 
Material Maintenance Workload Data FY12 on Page 1?  If not, which types of assets 
are not included in the Material Maintenance Workload Data?

The Equipment Density Listing is a list of equipment Material Maintenance 
repaired at one time or another, however, it does not mean the equipment was 
repaired in FY12 only.  The workload data in TE 5001 is a listing of work orders 
completed in FY12.

Ex-25 Technical Exhibit -5-001, 
Pages 2 and 3, Listing of 
Office Automation Equipment 
Repaired on Sub-Contracts

Are the subcontracted efforts referenced in this section included in the Workorder 
numbers called out in the Material Maintenacne Workload Data FY12 or are the 
subcontracted and vendor activities excluded from those numbers?

Subcontract workload is included in workload data.  Subcontract work begins with 
a work order submitted to material maintenance shop.  That work order is used to 
track subcontracted work until completion.  So yes, subcontract workload is 
included in workload data.  

Ex-26 Exhibits H, J, and K These three exhibits provide workload data in the form of both projected and actual 
data.  In many cases those two numbers differ significantly.  Which set of data 
(projected or actual) would the Government prefer the bidders use as the basis for 
estimating the costs for this project.  

Offerors should use actual numbers in their estimates with the knowledge that these 
numbers may fluctuate.

Ex-27 Exhibit K; Technical Exhibit 5-
005, XIII. Transportation 
Motor Pool (Ref para C.5.13), 
Sheet 13-2.

Columns Q thru T detail TMP workload data in support of the Warrior Transition Unit 
and the NSA. Can you please provide information describing what type of passenger 
service is provided to these activities?

The provided workload data contained in TE 5-006 is sufficient. 

Ex-28 Exhibit D, TE 5-001 Will the Government provide more information to support the Maintenance workload 
data, e.g., number of productive hours associated with the work orders by commodity? 

The provided workload data is sufficient.  

Ex-30 Amended Workload Sheets 
Exhibit J (XII, Trans Svcs); 

The "FY12 Projected" workload data is not identified on "Exhibit XIV, Installation 
Supply Services" sheets 14-1 thru 14-3.  Exhibits J and K for Transportation Services 

Offerors should use the actual numbers in their estimates with the knowledge that 
these numbers may fluctuate.

Question # RFP Reference QUESTION ANSWER
CDRL-1 Exhibit R, PM-09 

Antiterrorism, OPSEC, IA 
Training 

IA Awareness Training: Block 12 (date of first submission) states “Within 30 days of 
contract award”.  Because IA training is directly related to employees’ hiring and on-
board dates, will the Government review the submission date for this section of CDRL 
PM-09 to read, as per AT Level 1 training submission, that is “Within 30 calendar days 
after contract start date or employee on-board date whichever is later.”?

The CDRL will not be changed.  Block 12 is for initial submission only.  Block 10 
covers new employees.

CDRL-2 Exhibit R, PM-12 Interactive 
Customer Evaluation Rollup 
Report

Block 13 (Date of Subsequent Submission) states: “5th business day of previous 
month”.
Should this rather read "5th business day of the month”?

This CDRL will be updated.

CDRL-3 Exhibit R, PM-21 
Occupational Health Hazard 
Plan

Block 12 (Date of First Submission) states: “30 days after contract.” 
Please confirm the submission date of this CDRL.
We would suggest  30 days before contract performance start date as per CDRLs PM-
14, 15, 16 that are similar types of plans.

This CDRL will be updated with similar language found in CDRLs PM-14, 15 and 
16

CDRL Questions



CDRL-4 Exhibit V, CD-02 IPMR Block 16 states :” Block 10 – Monthly. Block 11 – 30 days after contract award date. 
Block 12 – As required by regulation or COR after performance start date. Block 13 – 
Date report produced.” We understand this report is to be submitted monthly.
Please confirm the date of the first submission (Block 12), and subsequent submission 
(Block 13).

Block 10 – Monthly.
Block 11 – 30 days after contract award date.
Block 12 –  Within 30 days after performance start date  or as directed by the COR.
Block 13 –  No later than 10 calendar days after the end of each preceding month.




